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—— Vision ——
To be a top quartile provider of investment solutions to both individuals
and institutions. Through the success of our clients and employees we
seek to build sustainable and long-term shareholder value, and to

be an employer of choice in the asset management industry.

—— Mission ——

To deliver superior performance as measured by market share parameters,
high-quality service and a portfolio of innovative yet tailored products
across a range of investment disciplines and distribution channels.

To provide a fulfilling, stimulating and supportive environment
for our employees that fosters their personal growth and

facilitates our productivity as a team.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The Board of Directors of Lakson Investments Limited, the Management Company of the Lakson
Income Fund ('LIF' or 'Fund') is pleased to submit its report together with Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Fund Objective

The investment objective of the Scheme is to provide competitive total returns through investment
in a diversified portfolio of fixed income securities. The Scheme shall invest in various fixed income
securities with a mix of short term, medium term, and longer-term maturities depending on the
assessment by the Management Company of interest rate trends and prospective returns.

Principal activities

The Fund is an open-end income fund and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. LIF invests in
Investment-grade Debt Securities, Government Securities, Certificate of Investments, Clean Placements,
Term Deposit Receipts, and other fixed income instruments. The overall duration of the portfolio is
kept below 4 years while at least 25% of Net Assets are kept in the form of cash or Treasury Bills of
maximum 90 days maturity. LIF is managed through a team-driven, top-down process utilizing active
sector rotation, duration and yield curve management. Economic conditions are constantly monitored
to forecast interest rate changes. The added value for LIF comes from identifying opportunities to shift
investments between various maturities and between different instruments. LIF is allowed to borrow
up to 15% of Net Assets to meet redemptions however LIF did not utilize this facility during the period
under review.

Fund Performance

The LIF yielded an annualized return of 15.95% in the FY24 against the benchmark return of 21.91%
p.a. The LIF underperformed by -5.96%. As of June 30, 2024, the LIF portfolio was invested 11.8% in
cash, 1.7% in TFCs/Sukuks, 2% in Commercial Papers, 67.4% in T-bills, 11.7 in PIBs and 5.4% in others
while the weighted average maturity of the LIF portfolio stood at 403 days. The fund size of the LIF
as of June 30, 2024 is PKR 7,786 million.

Earnings Per Unit (EPU)
EPU is not being disclosed as we feel determination of weighted average units for calculating EPU is
not practicable for open end funds.

Income Distribution

The Chief Executive Officer under the authority from Board of Directors of the Management Company
declared the interim payout of PKR 16.2433 per unit (16.2433% of face value of PKR 100/-) amounting
to PKR 264.8157 million in cash during the year ended June 30, 2024.

Principal Risk and Uncertainties

The economic instability, rising current account deficit, declining FX reserves, higher than expected
inflation, PKR devaluation, lower than expected financial aid by both unilateral/bilateral donor agencies,
further monetary tightening and worsening of external relations remains a risk for all business sectors
in Pakistan.

Asset Manager and Fund Rating
The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ('PACRA') has maintained the asset manager rating of the
Management Company and the Fund Stability Rating of LIF at "AM2+" at "A+(f)" respectively.

Additional Matters:

1. The detail of Directors of the Management Company is disclosed in this Annual Report.

2. The financial statements prepared by the Management Company present fairly the state of affairs
of the Fund, the results of its operations, cash flows and movement in unit holders' fund.

3. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained.
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4. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

5. Relevant International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003, Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 ('"NBFC Regulations), directives issued by the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and requirements of the constitutive documents
of the Fund have been followed in the preparation of financial statements and any departure
there from has been adequately disclosed.

6. The system of internal control is adequate and sound in design and has been effectively implemented
and monitored.

7. There are no significant doubts upon the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern.
8. Key financial data has been summarized in this Annual Report.

9. Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges have been fully
disclosed in these financial statements.

10. The statement as to the value of investments of provident fund is not applicable in the case of
the Fund as such expenses are borne by the Management Company.

11. The pattern of unit holding as at June 30, 2024 is given in this Annual Report.

12. A performance table / key financial data is annexed to this annual report.

External Auditor

The existing auditors M/s. Yousuf Adil., Chartered Accountants being eligible, have given their consent
for reappointment as auditors for the year ending June 30, 2025. The Board of Directors, on the
recommendations of the Audit Committee, has reappointed M/s. M/s. Yousuf Adil., Chartered
Accountants for the year ending June 30, 2025.

Economy Review:
Economic challenges faced by Pakistan met with a breather at the start of FY24 as Pakistan signed
IMF's 9-month Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) worth USS3 billion.

We saw continuation of positive outcomes from fiscal and regulatory reforms initiated under guidelines
given by the IMF.

Concerted efforts to narrow the current account deficit yielded success. Growth in exports, remittances,
outpacing import demand, narrowed the current account balance to a deficit of cumulative US$626
million in FY24 compared to US$2,077 million in FY23.

This balanced approach further added on to assistance from bilateral and multilateral lenders, raising
State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) foreign exchange reserves by 2x YoY to a of US$9.4 billion. Resultantly
import cover also reached 2x in Jun-2024 compared to 1.3x a year ago.

An expected new program to be approved with IMF during FY25 will further strengthen reserves. The
stable external account led to almost flat in Pakistani Rupee (PKR) against the US dollar during the
second half of FY24, closing at PKR278/USD on Jun-2024 (+4% YoY).

With a stable currency and high base effect from the previous year, Pakistan continued its disinflationary
phase that began in 3QFY24. Consumer Price Index (CPI) for FY24 averaged ~24%, compared to 29%
in FY23.

Amid disinflation, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) initiated a monetary easing cycle for the
first time in four years, trimming Policy Rate by 1.5% to 20.5% in June-2024. The secondary market
continued to price in further anticipation of near-term rate cut, remaining below the revised benchmark
rates.
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Towards the end of fiscal year, the government announced the Federal Budget for FY25, outlining
higher tax measures that is targeted to improve FY25 fiscal deficit to 5.9% of GDP (lowest in seven
years), while targeting primary balance of 1.2% of GDP for the year.

Fixed income markets review

The secondary market yields remained volatile throughout the year, contrary to market expectations,
the central bank maintained its tight monetary policy stance throughout the year, keeping Policy rate
unchanged at 22%, until June-2024 when the first rate cut of 150bp was announced.

To gain benefit from the changing yields, banks continued to utilize SBP window facility to place their
excess liquidity. Participation and acceptance in T-Bill and Floater PIB auctions remained higher during
the year where cut-off yields below the Policy Rate, maintaining an inverter yield curve.

Benchmark 6M Kibor were up 3% on average to 22% during FY24, however remains below the policy
rate since Oct-2023.

Future Outlook

The SBP has finally began monetary easing cycle with first cut of 150bps in Policy rate announced in
June-2024, followed by another 100bps cut in July-2024. Policy rate now stands at 19.5%. This easing
stance followed a four-year period of tightening and stable rates cycle, and complemented the ongoing
disinflation trend with CPI dropping to 11.8% in May 2024. Additionally, a close-to-break-even Balance
of Payments, supported by elevated remittances, contributed to the stability of SBP's foreign exchange
reserves.

We expect Pakistan to enter single-digit inflation figure from August-2024 onwards, due to favorable
base effect from last year's elevated prices. This will create room for further rate cuts ahead. Anticipation
of monetary easing was already reflected in secondary market yields trading below the benchmark
rate since Oct-2023.

Moreover, announcement of ambitious revenue target in the FY25 Budget, helped the government
to secure IMF's staff-level agreement on a 37-month, US$7bn Extended Fund Facility Arrangement
(EFF), which is subject to IMF's Executive Board approval. The key focus areas outlined by the fund
include 1) fiscal consolidation with tall revenue targets (FY24 fiscal deficit already reported some
improvement), 2) disinflation-supportive monetary policy stance, 3) energy sector reforms including
no direct subsidy, 4) privatization of profitable State-Owned Enterprises (SOEs) and 4) taxation of
agriculture sector from Jan-2025.

Going forward, investor sentiment is expected to receive a significant boost this month as the IMF
program for Pakistan nears final approval at the Board level. Concurrently, ongoing negotiations with
friendly countries including China, Saudia Arabia and UAE for debt restructuring and privatization
program are seen as a crucial step towards the Fund program. These developments, coupled strong
corporate earnings and progress over resolution of energy sector circular debt results, are poised to
improve investor confidence and continue unlocking valuations from the prevailing ~4x P/E. Extended
political noise is a key hinderance to the aforementioned triggers.

Acknowledgment

The Board is thankful to its valued investors, the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the
State Bank of Pakistan, the Trustee of the Fund - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and
the management of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for their continued cooperation and support.
The Directors of the Management Company also acknowledge the efforts put in by the team of the
Management Company for the growth and the prudent management of the Fund.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chief Executive Officer Director

Dated: September 12, 2024
Karachi
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REPORT OF THE FUND MANAGER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Fund Facts Asset Allocation
Fund Type Open-End
Category Income Fund
Net Assets (PKR Mil.) 7,786
NAV (30.06.2024) 101.9433

Pricing Mechanism

Forward Day

Trustee

CDC Pakistan Limited

Auditor

Yousuf Adil Saleem & Co.

Management Fee

Upto 1.5% (Current 1.08%)

Front End Load

1.50%

Back End Load
Launch Date

None T-Bills
723
November 13, 2009

Benchmark Average daily rate of 6M KIBOR
(Ask)
Dealing Days Mon - Fri Credit Split
Cut-Off Time 04:00 PM (Mon-Fri)
Fund Rating 'A+ (f)' by PACRA (11.Mar.2024)
Asset Manager Rating AM2+ by PACRA (25.Aug.2023)
Risk Profile Medium Risk
Govt
Securities
79%
Simple Annualized LIF Benchmark Investment Committee
FY24-YTD 15.95% 21.91% Babar Ali Lakhani Chief Executive Officer
June-24 22.08% 20.38% Kashif Mustafa Executive Direcotr & COO
2 Months 21.96% 20.94% Mustafa O. Pasha, CFA Chief Investment Officer
3 Months 21.97% 21.16% Hassan Bin Nasir
6 Months 20.61% 21.24% Mirza Danial Baig
12 Months 15.95% 21.91%
CY24-YTD 20.61% 21.24%
3 Years 21.29% 23.23%
5 Years 17.67% 19.40%
Since Inception 21.87% 22.24%

Fund Objective

The investment objective of the Scheme is to provide competitive total returns through investment
in a diversified portfolio of fixed income securities. The Scheme shall invest in various fixed income
securities with a mix of short term, medium term, and longer- term maturities depending on the
assessment by the Management Company of interest rate trends and prospective returns.

Investment Strategy

The LIF focused on the constructing a liquid, diverse and high credit quality portfolio in accordance
with its Investment Objective. Exposure of the LIF in T-Bills, TDRs, TFCs and other money market
placements was managed based on the relative yield analysis of these instruments and the yield curve
management. As of June 30, 2024, the LIF portfolio was invested 11.8% in cash, 1.7% in TFCs/Sukuks,
2% in Commercial Papers, 67.4% in T-bills, 11.7 in PIBs and 5.4% in others while the weighted average
maturity of the LIF portfolio stood at 403 days.
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Fund Profile

The Fund is an open-end income fund and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. LIF invests
in Investment-grade Debt Securities, Government Securities, Certificate of Investments, Clean
Placements, Term Deposit Receipts, and other fixed income instruments. The overall duration of the
portfolio is kept below 4 years while at least 25% of Net Assets are kept in the form of cash or Treasury
Bills of maximum 90 days maturity. LIF is managed through a team-driven, top-down process utilizing
active sector rotation, duration, and yield curve management. Economic conditions are constantly
monitored to forecast interest rate changes. The added value for LIF comes from identifying opportunities
to shift investments between various maturities and between different instruments. LIF is allowed
to borrow up to 15% of Net Assets to meet redemptions, however LIF did not utilize this facility during
the period under review.

Economic Review

Economic challenges faced by Pakistan met with a breather at the start of FY24 as Pakistan signed
IMF's 9-month Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) worth USS$3 billion.

We saw continuation of positive outcomes from fiscal and regulatory reforms initiated under guidelines
given by the IMF.

Concerted efforts to narrow the current account deficit yielded success. Growth in exports, remittances,
outpacing import demand, narrowed the current account balance to a deficit of cumulative US$626
million in FY24 compared to US$2,077 million in FY23.

This balanced approach further added on to assistance from bilateral and multilateral lenders, raising
State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) foreign exchange reserves by 2x YoY to a of US$9.4 billion. Resultantly
import cover also reached 2x in Jun-2024 compared to 1.3x a year ago.

An expected new program to be approved with IMF during FY25 will further strengthen reserves. The
stable external account led to almost flat in Pakistani Rupee (PKR) against the US dollar during the
second half of FY24, closing at PKR278/USD on Jun-2024 (+4% YoY).

With a stable currency and high base effect from the previous year, Pakistan continued its disinflationary
phase that began in 3QFY24. Consumer Price Index (CPI) for FY24 averaged ~24%, compared to 29%
in FY23.

Amid disinflation, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) initiated a monetary easing cycle for the
first time in four years, trimming Policy Rate by 1.5% to 20.5% in June-2024. The secondary market
continued to price in further anticipation of near-term rate cut, remaining below the revised benchmark
rates.

Towards the end of fiscal year, the government announced the Federal Budget for FY25, outlining
higher tax measures that is targeted to improve FY25 fiscal deficit to 5.9% of GDP (lowest in seven
years), while targeting primary balance of 1.2% of GDP for the year.

Fund Performance

The LIF yielded an annualized return of 15.95% in the FY24 against the benchmark return of 21.91%
p.a. The LIF underperformed by -5.96%. As of June 30, 2024, the LIF portfolio was invested 11.8% in
cash, 1.7% in TFCs/Sukuks, 2% in Commercial Papers, 67.4% in T-bills, 11.7 in PIBs and 5.4% in others
while the weighted average maturity of the LIF portfolio stood at 403 days. The fund size of the LIF
as of June 30, 2024 is PKR 7,786 million.
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Performance Table FY24 FY23 LIF vs. Benchmark
Net Assets - Beginning (PKR Mil.) 576 2,618 270
Net Assets - Ending (PKR Mil.) 7,786 576
Highest Offer Price (PKR) 119.8356  112.1301 120
Lowest Offer Price (PKR) 101.8528 102.9514 7.0
Highest Redemption Price (PKR)  117.8324  110.2557 1120
Lowest Redemption Price (PKR)  100.1502 101.4299 1070
Beginning NAV - Ex-Div. (PKR) 101.9766 101.3972 1020
Interim Distributions (PKR) 16.2433 8.8585
Final Distribution (PKR) - - e Jun-23 Aug-23 oct-23 Dec-23 Feb24  Apr24 Jun-24
Ending NAV - Ex-Div. (PKR) 101.9433  101.3972 " _ Benchmark
Return 15.95% 15.95%
Net Income (PKR Mil.) 719.93 105.20
Distributions FY24 FY23
PKR per Unit
Interim Distributions (PKR) 16.2433 8.8585
Final Distribution - -
NAV before Distribution 117.8324 101.3972
NAV after Distribution 101.5891 101.3972
Distribution Date 25-Jun-24 19-Jun-23

Fixed Income Market Review

The secondary market yields remained volatile throughout the year, contrary to market expectations,
the central bank maintained its tight monetary policy stance throughout the year, keeping Policy rate
unchanged at 22%, until June-2024 when the first rate cut of 150bp was announced.

To gain benefit from the changing yields, banks continued to utilize SBP window facility to place their
excess liquidity. Participation and acceptance in T-Bill and Floater PIB auctions remained higher during
the year where cut-off yields below the Policy Rate, maintaining an inverter yield curve.

Benchmark 6M Kibor were up 3% on average to 22% during FY24, however remains below the policy
rate since Oct-2023.

Income Distribution

The Chief Executive Officer under the authority from Board of Directors of the Management Company
declared the interim payout of PKR 16.2433 per unit (16.2433% of face value of PKR 100/-) amounting
to PKR 264.8157 million in cash during the year ended June 30, 2024.

Future Outlook

The SBP has finally began monetary easing cycle with first cut of 150bps in Policy rate announced in
June-2024, followed by another 100bps cut in July-2024. Policy rate now stands at 19.5%. This easing
stance followed a four-year period of tightening and stable rates cycle, and complemented the ongoing
disinflation trend with CPI dropping to 11.8% in May 2024. Additionally, a close-to-break-even Balance
of Payments, supported by elevated remittances, contributed to the stability of SBP's foreign exchange
reserves.

We expect Pakistan to enter single-digit inflation figure from August-2024 onwards, due to favorable
base effect from last year's elevated prices. This will create room for further rate cuts ahead. Anticipation
of monetary easing was already reflected in secondary market yields trading below the benchmark
rate since Oct-2023.

Moreover, announcement of ambitious revenue target in the FY25 Budget, helped the government
to secure IMF's staff-level agreement on a 37-month, USS7bn Extended Fund Facility Arrangement
(EFF), which is subject to IMF's Executive Board approval. The key focus areas outlined by the fund
include 1) fiscal consolidation with tall revenue targets (FY24 fiscal deficit already reported some
improvement), 2) disinflation-supportive monetary policy stance, 3) energy sector reforms including
no direct subsidy, 4) privatization of profitable State-Owned Enterprises (SOEs) and 4) taxation of
agriculture sector from Jan-2025.
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Going forward, investor sentiment is expected to receive a significant boost this month as the IMF
program for Pakistan nears final approval at the Board level. Concurrently, ongoing negotiations with
friendly countries including China, Saudia Arabia and UAE for debt restructuring and privatization
program are seen as a crucial step towards the Fund program. These developments, coupled strong
corporate earnings and progress over resolution of energy sector circular debt results, are poised to
improve investor confidence and continue unlocking valuations from the prevailing ~4x P/E. Extended
political noise is a key hinderance to the aforementioned triggers.

Circumstances Materially Affecting Interests of Unit Holders

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ('PACRA') has maintained the asset manager rating of the
Management Company and the Fund Stability Rating of LIF at "AM2+" at "A+(f)" respectively.

Other Disclosures

Lakson Investments Limited or any of its delegates did not receive any soft commission from its
broker(s) or dealer(s).

There was no unit split undertaken during the year.

As of June 30, 2024, the LIF does not employ any leverage.

Breakdown of Unit Holding by Size

Units Range No. of Clients Units Held
Holding upto 100 23 410
101 - 500 2 295
501 - 1,000 5 3,470
1,001 - 5,000 6 12,823
5,001 - 10,000 5 35,230
10,001 - 50,000 6 153,874
50,001 - 100,000 5 316,043
100,001 - 500,000 16 3,312,555
500,001 - 1,000,000 3 2,429,268
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 15 39,188,523
5,000,001 - above 3 30,919,104

89 76,371,595
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

LRL e a0
Errall: info@dopek «

o f'--”_
TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS “" ! i

LAKSON INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant (o Reaulation $1(h) and clause § of Schodule ¥ of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limiled, Fizing the Trustee of Lakson
Incorse Fund {the Fund) are of the opinion that Lakson Investments Limited being the
Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund
during - the vear ended June 30, 2004 i nccordance With the pravisions of the
following:

(i} Limitations imposed an the mvestment powers of the Mansgement Cormpany!
under the constitutive documents of the Fund,

[#13] The pricing, ssuance and redemption of urits are carvied out in accordance
with the requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund;

{iii)  The management foe, fee payable to Co mmission and other expenses paid fom
the Fund during the period are in aecordarics with the mpplivabiereguiatory
framework; and

{iv}  The Non-Banking Finence Companies {Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Non-Banking Finance Companics and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

For the purpose of information, we would like to draw the attention of the unit holders
towards clause 3.18.3 of the Master Cireular which requircs that the maximum
exposure in Microtinance Banks, NBFCs and Modurabas shall notexeced. 23% ol the
riet assets of the Fund. In this regard, the Fund was non-complient with the said
requirement from February 22, 2024 to May 29, 2024 with exposure uplo 31.11% ef
the Nei Assets. The said non-compliance has also been reported to Securitics and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

P

1
e 1 /
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karuchi: September 25, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Unit Holders of Lakson Income Fund

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Lakson Income Fund (ihe Fund), which comprize the statement of nssets and
liabilitios as at June 30, 2024, and the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of maverent
in unit holders” fund and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, Including
a summary of material accounting policy information

It wur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fut as st
June 30, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accardance with secounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {1545) as applicable in Pakistan Our
respansibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finsncia)
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and Management Company in accordance with the
Imernaticnal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESB4 Code}as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Paklstan together with the ethical requirernents that ara relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we heve fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriata
to provide & basis Tor our opinion

Key Audit Matter

Key Budit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 1he
financinl statements of the current year. This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
&5 a whole, and In forming our epinion theresn, and we do not provide a separate opinien on this matter

5. No.  Key audit matter How our audit addresses the key audit matter
T- | Existence and Valuation of investments [

The investments represent 8% of the total assets | We performed o combination of audit procedures
amaunted ta RS 6.859 million of the fund at the | focusing on the existence and valuation of
year end investments. Our Key procedure included the
following

In view of the significant amount of 1otal
Investmants in relation to determination of net
azset value of the fund, we have considered these
10 e & key audit mattar

« We have reviewed the processes and key
contrels relating to existence and valuation and
evaluated the design and implementation of
such contrals.

Refer 1o notes 4.1 and 6 of he fiNancials . e have evaluated the appropriateness of the
statements of the fund for the year ended 30 June | clagsification of the investments in accordance
2024 in relation 1o the above referred investments with the requirements of IFRS 9

= We checked axistence of investments from the
Investor  Portfolio Services  (IBS)  acoount
statement and custadian statements
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5. No, Key audit matter | How our audit addresses the key audit matter

= We hawve recalculaied provision on  non-
performing  asset in accordance with  the |
requitements of applicable regulations

* Wa have re-performed vabuation 1o assess that
investments are carried as per the valuation
meihodolegy specified in the accounting policy
of the Fund

= We also evaluated the adequacy of the cverall
disclosures in the financial stawements in
respect  of the investment portfolie in
accordance with the requiremenis of the
Requlations and applicable financial reporting
standards.

Imfarmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Managernent Company is responsible for the other mfermation, The gther information comprises the infermatian included
in thiz annual repen, but dees nat include the financial statements and our audiar’s repart therecn

Our apinion on the financial statements doas not cover the ather iInformation and we do net express any form of pasurance
conclusion therean

In connection with our audit of the financizl statements, cur responsibility is to read the ather information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with 1he financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in 1he audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perfarmed, we conclude 1hat
there is a material misstatemnent of this other information, we are required to repart that fact. We have not been provided
with the ather infarrmation yet and therefore, we have nothing 10 report in this regard

Responsibiiities of Management Company and Those Changed with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management Company i responsible for the prepaation and fair prezentation of the financial staternents in accordance
with accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such intemal control as the Management
Company cetermines is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial siatements that are free from materal
messtatement, whether due 1o frawd or error

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is respansible for assessing the Fund's abllity 10 continue as
@ geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related ta gaing concern and uging the going coencermn basss of
accounting unless Management Campany either intends to liquidate the Fund or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but 10 do 56,

Those Charged with Governance of the Managemen! Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
regorling process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matarial
misstatement, whether due 10 fraud o emor, end to lssue an suditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie
assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit condueted in accardance with I15As as applicable
in Fakistan will always detect a materlal misstaiement when [t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or erfor and are
considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 1o influence the aconemic
decisions of users 1aken on the basis of these financial statements.

W
T &
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As part of an auddt in accordance with |5As as appliceble in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintaln
professional skepliciam throughaout the audit, We also;

- Igentify and ss=ess the risks of material misstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responaive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suMlicient and
appropriale 1o provide a basis for aur opinion. The risk of not detecting a materfal misstatement resulting frem fraud
is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may invalve collusion, fargery, imentional omisgions,
misiepresentations, or the averride of imernal control

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit procedures that ane
appropriate in the circumstances, but nat far the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Management Company’s internal control

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of BCCOUNTNG estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management Company,

- Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company's use of the gaing cancern basis of accounting and,
based an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 1o events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability 1o continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, We are fequired to draw attention in our auditor's report 10 the related disclosures in the financizl statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 10 modify our opifien. Our conclusions are based on the sudit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund 1o cease to
continue as a going Concern,

- Evaluate the overall gresentation, structure and content of the financial staternants, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial staterents represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation

Ve communicate with Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company regarding. ameng other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit

We also provide Those Charged with Governance of the Managerment Company with 2 statement fhat we have complied
with relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matiers that may reasonably be shought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matiers communicated with Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company, wa detarming those
matters that were of mast significance in the audit of the finaneial staternents of the current period and are therelore the
key audil matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we detesmine that @ matier should not be communicated in au
report because the adverse censequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweeigh the public interest
benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our apinlon, the financial statements have boon prepared in accordance with the relevant provisians of the Non-Banking
Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and MNon-Banking Fimance Companies and Motified
Entities Requlations, 2008,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mr, Anf Nazeer,

7 P O 0

&

charlemdlr'mwununl,p..

Place: Karachi
Date: Septemtier 20, 2024
UDIN: ARZDZA100998v7GEIUT
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LAKSON INCOME FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2024
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
Assets Note (Rupees)
Bank balances 5 930,814,808 39,589,225
Investments 6 6,859,617,046 537,133,989
Profit / mark-up receivable 7 57,315,139 8,546,993
Advances, deposits and other receivables 8 16,585,124 18,304,734
Receivable against sale of units 1,806,952 -
Total assets 7,866,139,069 603,574,941
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 9 25,063,189 18,870,811
Payable to the Trustee 10 451,182 39,725
Payable to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan 11 399,228 219,604
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 54,652,200 8,188,977
Total liabilities 80,565,799 27,319,117
Net assets 7,785,573,270 576,255,824
Unit Holders' Fund (as per Statement of
Movement In Unit Holders' Fund) 7,785,573,270 576,255,824
Contigencies and commitments 14
---------- (Number of units)--------
Number of units in issue 15 76,371,595 5,650,860
---------------- (Rupees) -----------------
Net assets value per unit 101.9433 101.9766

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Lakson Investments Limited
(Management Company)

A T

35 [ A 0 P, T,
L [oh @'.’N‘ -\“‘L]' LR
[

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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Income Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2024

June 30, June 30,
Income 2024 2023
Realised loss on sale of investments classified as at Note (Rupees)
fair value through profit or loss -net (9,929,934) (12,347,925)
Unrealised diminution on revaluation of investments
classified as at fair value through profit or loss -net (19,822,271) (1,680,199)
Profit / mark-up income (29,752,205) (14,028,124)
Markup on:
Bank balances calculated using effective interest method 142,528,400 26,821,231
Government and other debt securities using
effective interest method 686,865,905 140,986,421
829,394,305 167,807,652
Income from margin trading system 6,124 633,573
Income from certificate of deposit 361,644 -
Provision against non-performing debt securities (31,968,000) (31,966,400)
768,041,868 122,446,701
Expenses
Remuneration to the Management Company 34,184,320 11,490,686
Sindh Sales tax on remuneration to the
Management Company 4,444,356 1,491,403
Remuneration to the Trustee 10 3,205,470 933,063
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan 11 2,836,799 219,629
Securties and Exchange Commision of Pakistan
supervisory fee 2,500 2,500
Brokerage, custody, settlement and bank charges 1,604,559 902,433
Auditors' remuneration 16 622,547 548,860
Fees and subscription 585,302 1,368,073
Legal and professional charges 589,999 288,071
Printing charges 36,138 6,780
Total expenses 48,111,990 17,251,498
Net income from operating activities 719,929,878 105,195,203
Net income for the year before taxation 719,929,878 105,195,203
Taxation 17 - -
Net income for the year after taxation 719,929,878 105,195,203
Allocation of net income for the year after taxation
Net income for the year after taxation 719,929,878 105,195,203
Income already paid on units redeemed (431,435,290) (76,552,444)
288,494,588 28,642,759
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains - net - -
- Excluding capital gains 288,494,588 28,642,759
Accounting income available for distribution 288,494,588 28,642,759

Earnings per unit 4.14

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For Lakson Investments Limited
(Management Company)

AR LU \ e

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2024

2024 2023
(Rupees)
Net income for the year 719,929,878 105,195,203
Other comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 719,929,878 105,195,203

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Lakson Investments Limited
(Management Company)

s
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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For Lakson Investments Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Director

Chief Executive Officer
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LAKSON INCOME FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the year

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Mark-up income on investment

Income from Margin Trading System

Income from certificate of deposit

Realised loss on sale of investments classified as
at fair value through profit or loss -net

Unrealised diminution on revaluation of investments
classified as financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss'-net

Provision against non-performing debt securities

(Increase) / decrease in assets
Investments

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of units

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee

Payable to Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Profit received on bank balances and investments
Receipts under margin trading system

Receipts from certificate of deposit

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Received from issue of units

Paid on redemption of units

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances 5
Investments maturing within 3 months 6

2024 2023
(Rupees)

719,929,878 105,195,203
(829,394,305) (167,807,652)
(6,124) (633,573)

(361,644) -
9,929,934 12,347,925
19,822,271 1,680,199
31,968,000 31,966,400
(48,111,990) (17,251,498)
(5,344,598,562) 1,509,832,505
1,719,610 8,186,128

(1,806,952) -
(5,344,685,904) 1,518,018,633
6,192,378 (2,583,417)
411,457 (184,444)
179,624 (579,906)
46,162,334 (19,996,381)
52,945,793 (23,344,148)
780,626,159 220,659,339
6,124 633,573

361,644 -
(4,558,858,174) 1,698,715,899
14,275,958,913 4,193,454,799
(6,908,944,714) (6,294,746,439)
(877,325,742) (45,633,441)
6,489,688,457 (2,146,925,081)
1,930,830,283 (448,209,182)
39,589,225 698,062,481
1,970,419,508 249,853,301
930,814,808 39,589,225
1,039,604,700 210,264,076
1,970,419,508 249,853,301

The annexed notes from 1 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For Lakson Investments Limited
(Management Company)

s

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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1.1

1.2

13

1.4

2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2024

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Lakson Income Fund (the "Fund") was established under the Trust Deed executed on August
18, 2009 between Lakson Investments Limited as its Management Company and the Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as its Trustee. The Fund has been registered
as a Notified Entity on September 18, 2009 by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified
Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations). The Management Company of the Fund has
been licensed by SECP to undertake Asset Management and Investment Advisory Services
as a Non-Banking Finance Company under the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). The registered office of the
Management Company is located at 14-Ali Block, New Garden Town, Lahore, while the
headoffice of the Fund is in the Lakson Square Building No.2, Karachi.

The Fund is an open end mutual fund and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.
Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable
and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund.

The Fund is categorised as "Income Scheme" as per the Circular 07 of 2009 issued by
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and it primarily invests in Government
securities, certificates of investment, certificates of deposits, term deposit receipts,
commercial papers, reverse repo, preference shares, spread transactions and corporate
debt securities, etc. subject to the guidelines issued by SECP from time to time.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited as Trustee of the Fund.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has maintained A+(f) (Fund Stability
Rating) to the Fund on March 11, 2024 based on the stability reviews for the year ended
30 June 2024 (2023: A+(f) on 06 March 2023) and has also maintained asset manager rating
of the Company to AM2+ (stable outlook), on 26 August 2023 (2023: AM2+ as on 26 August
2023).

The Trust Act, 1882 was repealed due to promulgation of Provincial Trust Act "Sindh Trust
Act, 2020" as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to the Constitution of Pakistan.
The Trusts including Collective Investment Scheme, private funds etc., being Specialized
Trusts are required to be registered with the Assistant Director of Industries and Commerce
(Trust Wing), Government of Sindh under Section 12A of the Sindh Trusts Act, 2020.
Accordingly, on January 31, 2023 the above mentioned Trust Deed has been registered
under the Sindh Trust Act.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards

applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984; and
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2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC
Rules), Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
NBFC Regulations).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirement
of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,
the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations and requirement of the Trust Deed have been
followed.

The SECP / Commission through its letter no. SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated
November 21, 2017 has deferred the applicability of the impairment requirements of IFRS
9 for debt securities on mutual funds. Currently, the Asset Management Companies are
required to continue to follow the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 for impairment
of debt securities.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
that certain investments are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the fund's functional
and presentation currency. All amount have been rounded off to the nearest of rupees,
unless otherwise indicated.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgement, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the Fund's accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision
to estimates are recognized prospectively. Information about judgements made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amount recognized in the
financial statements to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and assumptions
and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk resulting in a material adjustment
in the subsequent year relates to;

a) classification of financial assets (Note 4.1.1.1);
b) impairment of financial assets (Note 4.1.1.3);
c) taxation (note 4.10); and

d) provisions (Note 4.11).

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO THE
PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2024

There are certain amendments to the published accounting and reporting standards that
are mandatory for the Fund's annual accounting period beginning on July 1, 2023. However,
these do not have any significant impact on the Fund's operations and, therefore, have not
been detailed in these financial statements.

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective
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4.1

4.1.1.1

There are certain other standards, amendments and interpretations that are mandatory
for the Fund's accounting period beginning on or after July 1, 2024 but are considered not
to be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Fund's operations and are
therefore not disclosed in these financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information is applied in the preparation of these financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised in the Fund’s statement of assets and liabilities when the Fund
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity's business model for managing them.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. For purposes of
subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl), interest
income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised
in the income statement and computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCl is reclassified to the income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (debt instruments)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the fair value through
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4.1.1.2

4.1.1.3

other comprehensive income criteria are classified as at fair value through profit or loss.
In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criteria or the fair value
through other comprehensive income criteria may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases.

Fair value measurement principles
The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:
Basis of valuation of government debt securities:

The government securities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank
market are valued at the average rates quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system
(PKRV / PKISRV rates) which are based on the remaining tenor of the securities.

Basis of valuation of debt securities:

The fair value of debt securities (other than government securities) is based on the value
determined and announced by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance
with the criteria laid down in Circular No. 1 of 2009 and Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In the determination of the rates,
MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of these securities and categorises them as
traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The aforementioned circular also specifies
the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the
provisioning of non-performing debt securities.

Impairment of financial assets

Management Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that the Fund’s financial assets or a group of financial assets are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

As disclosed in note 2.1.1 of these financial statements, the Fund follows the requirements
of Circular No. 33 of 2012 (the "circular") for impairment of debt securities. Under the
circular, provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of time based
criteria as prescribed under the circular. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities
can be reversed through the income statement.

As allowed under circular no. 13 of 2009 dated May 04, 2009 issued by the SECP, the
Management Company may also make provision against debt securities over and above
minimum provision requirement prescribed in aforesaid circular, in accordance with the
provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors and disseminated by the Management
Company on its website.

For financial assets other than debt securities measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires
recognition of impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model. Under IFRS 9, the
Fund is required to measure loss allowance equal to an amount equal to lifetime ECL or 12
months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Fund considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Fund's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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4.1.1.4

4.1.2.1

4.1.2.2

4.2

4.3

4.4

However, majority of the assets of the Fund exposed to credit risk pertain to counter parties
which have high credit rating or where credit risk has not been increased since initial
recognition. Therefore, management believes that the impact of ECL would be very minimal
and hence, the same has not been accounted for in these financial statements.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund’s statement of
assets and liabilities) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset.

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method or at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or
the Fund has opted to measure them at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of assets and liabilities if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balance in profit and loss and current accounts
maintained with banks. Cash equivalents are short term (ranging from one month to three
months) highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of
meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investments and other purposes.

Trade date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, i.e.
the date on which commitment to purchase / sale is made by the Fund. Regular way
purchases or sales of investment require delivery of securities within two days after
transaction date as required by Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited Regulations.

Receivable against Margin Trading System (MTS)
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Securities purchased under Margin Trading System are entered into contracted rates for
specified rates for specified period of time. Amount paid under these agreements are
recognised as receivable in respect of MTS. Cash releases are adjusted against the receivable
as reduction in the amount of receivable. The maximum maturity of a MTS contract is 60
days out of which 25% exposure will be automatically released at expiry of every 15th day
from the date of contract.

Derivatives

Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial
measurement each derivative instrument is remeasured to its fair value and the resultant
gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement.

Issue and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for
the applications received by the distributors / Management Company during business hours
on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of the
business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and any provision
for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the investment facilitators,
distributors and the Management Company.

Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the
distributors receive redemption applications during business hours of that day. The
redemption price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close of the business
day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for
transaction costs, if applicable.

Net assets value per unit

Net assets value per unit disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated
by dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

Revenue recognition

- Realised gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the Income
Statement on the date at which transactions take place.

- Unrealised appreciation / (dimunition) arising on revaluation of investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are included in the Income Statement
in the period in which they arise.

- Profit on bank deposits, term deposit receipts, mark-up / return on investments in debt
securities, income from government securities and income from margin trading system
are recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective yield method.

Element of income / loss and capital gains / losses in prices of units sold less those in
units redeemed

Element of Income represents the difference between net assets value on the issuance or
redemption date, as the case may be, of units and the Net asset Value (NAV) at the beginning
of the relevant accounting period.

Element of Income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element
of income is taken to unit holders' fund; however, to maintain same ex-dividend net asset
value of all units outstanding on accounting date, net element of income contributed on
the issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units (refund of capital) in the
same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for distribution. As per
the guidelines provided by MUFAP (MUFAP Guidelines consented upon by SECP) the refund
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of capital is made in the form of additional units at zero price. Income already paid on
redemption of units during the year are taken separately in the statement of movement
in unitholders' fund.

MUFAP, in consultation with the SECP, has specified methodology for determination of
income paid on units redeemed (income already paid) during the year under which such
income is paid on gross element received and is calculated from the latest date at which
the Fund achieved net profitability during the year. The income already paid (Element of
Income) on redemption of units during the year are taken separately in Statement of
Movement in Unitholders' Fund.

4.10 Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than
90% of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised
or unrealised, is distributed among the unit holders, provided that for the purpose of
determining distribution of not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, the
income distributed through bonus units shall not be taken into account.

The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause
11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

4.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provision are reviewed
at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.12 Dividend distribution
Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-
adjusting events and are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such
distributions are declared.
The distribution per unit is announced based on units that were held for the entire period.
The rate of distribution is adjusted for the effect of refund of capital if any based on the
period of investment made during the year. Resultantly, the rate of distribution per unit
may vary depending on the period of investment.

4.13 Other assets

Other assets comprose of deposits and other receivables, receivable against Margin Trading
System which are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.

4.14 Earnings per unit (EPU)

Earnings Per Unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management,
determination of weighted average units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
5. BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees)
In profit and loss sharing accounts 5.1 930,807,334 39,581,751
In current accounts 7,474 7,474
930,814,808 39,589,225
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5.1 These represent profit and loss account maintained with banks carrying profit rates ranging
from 18% to 20.5% (June 30, 2023: 11.25% to 19.5%) per annum.

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
6 INVESTMENTS Note (Rupees)

Financial assets classified at fair value

through profit or loss
Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills 6.1 5,302,426,751 200,873,402
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.2 922,832,400 -
Listed equity securities (Spread Transaction) 6.3 - -
Term finance certificates - Unlisted 6.4 131,165,737 336,260,587

6,356,424,888 537,133,989

Financial assets classified at amortized cost

Short term sukuk 6.5 173,325,720 -
Certificate of Deposit 6.6 329,866,438 -
503,192,158 -

6,859,617,046 537,133,989

6.1 Government Securities - Market Treasury Bills - Face value of Rs. 100 each
y Disposed /| B Disposed /| Balance as at June 30, 2024 Market Market
Date of As at Acr:julred matired) As at As at Act_]mred e As at { ied valueasa | valueasa
lssue | July 01, |during the during the June 30, | July 01, |during the during the June 30, | Carrying | Market | Unrealized | percentage | percentage
2023 year 2024 2023 year 2024 value value | assets| of total
Tenure year year | of Fund i
------------ (Number of Units) ----------- —enemeeeeees (NUMber Of UNits) —-sememeeme eeeeeene- (RUpeES) - (%)
Tessury il 03 months 215ep23 o sow 250000 . - aso000000 250000000
Tessury il 03 months Tavar20 C amow 37500 . 75000000 37500000 . . . . .
TessuryBils 01 year 190023 o somw sooo . - soo000  s000000
Treasury Bills - 01 year 11-Jan-24 6,900,000 2,350,000 - - 690,000,000 235,000,000 455,000,000 413,787,539 412,315995 (1,471,544) 5.30 6.01
TessuryBils 01 yeor 2var2s © 70 . 00000000 0000000 5B GOS0 SoEsde 778 o5

6.1.1 All treasury bills have effective yield for closing treasury bills are 21.95 - 22%.
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6.2 Pakistan Investment Bond - Face value of Rs. 100 each
Balance as at June 30, 2024
) Carrying | Market "I"arke‘ "I"‘""‘e‘
Acquired |2i5Posed /| Aot | value as of | value as of | Unrealised | V3lUe@sa | valueasa
Name of Investments Dateof | Dateof Mark-up | Asato1 d matured ati
p Matortt Term te ) | suly 2023 | duringthe | RS | 30uune | theyear | theyear apereciation [ o o ol oy
ssue aturity rate (%) | July year uring the | 5024 |ended June|ended June| (diminution) 2! TEL AP
year 30,2024 30, 2024
before after
(Face value) (Rupees)
2 years Pakistan Investment Bond 30-Dec-21  30-Dec-23 2years 7.62 - 500,000,000 500,000,000 -
3 years Pakistan Investment Bond 22-0ct:20  22-Oct-23 3years - 450,000,000 450,000,000 - - - - - -
5 years Pakistan Investment Bond 21Sep23  21-Sep-28 5 years - 500,000,000 - 500,000,000 488,081,039 481,400,000 (6,681,039 6.18 7.02
5 years Pakistan Investment Bond 19-0ct23  19-Oct-28 5 years - 272,300,000 172,300,000 100,000,000 97,369,496 96,750,000  (619,496) 124 141
5 years Pakistan Investment Bond 14-Dec-23 14-Dec-28 5 years - 558,000,000 200,000,000 358,000,000 346,800,502 344,682,400 (2,118,102) 443 5.02
5 years Pakistan Investment Bond 18-Apr-24 17-Apr-29 5 years - 200,000,000 200,000,000 - - - - - -
Total as at June 30, 2024 - 2,480,300,000 1,522,300,000 958,000,000 932,251,037 922,832,400 (9,418,637) 11.85 13.45
Total as at une 30,2023
6.2.1 Profit which is variable receivable on these Pakistan Investments Bonds (PIB) on semi annual
basis.
6.3 Listed equity securities (Spread Transaction) - At fair value through profit or los
Asat Purchases | Disposed Asat . Unrealised | Marketvalue |y, ot value | % of hol
. - F Carrying Market N as percentage © O
Name of Security July 01, during during the June 30, gain as percentage | in investee
Value value of total
2023 the year year 2024 (loss) - net N of net assets company
investment
Refinery
Attock Refinery - 187,500 187,500 - - -
Pakistan Refinery Limited - 1,820,000 1,820,000 = B -
Cement
Maple Leaf Cement - 1,067,500 1,067,500 - - - - - - -
0il and Gas Exploration Companies
0Oil and Gas Development
Company Limited - 865,000 865,000 - - - -
Pakistan Petroleum Limited - 500 500 - - - -
0il and Gas Marketing Companies
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited - 218,500 218,500 - - -
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited - 340,000 340,000 - - -
Technology and Communication
TRG Pakistan Limited - 759,000 759,000 - - - - - - -
Total as at June 30, 2024 - - - B - N
Total as at June 30, 2023 - -
6.4 Term Finance Certificates - Un-listed - Face value of Rs. 100,000 each
Balance as at June 30, ZDZ: Market
" " Market lue asa
Asat | Acquired | Disposed | Asat N Unrealized val percentage
Dateof | Dateof | Rate oL | e e i 30, | CarTving | Market | unrealied | valueasa | percentage | size of thel
0 Note July 01, | during the|during the | June 30, | ~ U2 f ( tion) /| percentage | of total i
Performing Issue | maturity (%) 2023 year year 2024 value | appreciation | of " issue
of Fund
Number of certificate) (Rupees) — (%)
Commerdalsonk
oA i Lt T TECs
Somba Bk imited TEC
(face value of Rs. 100,000 each) 1-Mar-21 1-Mar-31 23.08% 360 360 35,907,459 36,185,737 278,278 0.46 053 072
[RS———
NASP WicoFinance Bnk
(face value of Rs. 100,000 each) 9-Jul-21 9-Jul-28 24.87% 642 700 700 70,000,000 70,000,000 090 1.02 9.09
nvestmentCompany
ahangiideaui Company imited
PR (ncovaluool o 50000ah) W7 12 18506 15000 L s
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Non-performing

Balance as at June 30, zoz: arket
i i Market lue as a
Asat | Acquired | Disposed | Asat ; Unrealized | valueasa | ooy percentage
Dateof | Dateof | Rate Note | luly01, | during the|during the| June 30, c:;rl\:::g Mal"‘e‘ (diminution) /| percontage | *oreemia6® [ofsze of the
Issue | maturity | (%) 2023 year year 2024 value | appreciation | of net B Issue
of Fund
------------ (Number of certificate) - | - (Rupees) —— (%)

(fac

Silk Bank Limitee

d PPTFC - 08 years
of Rs. 5,000 each) 10A0817  12-Aug25 1258 641 16,000 - - 16000 31,968,000 (31,968,000)

Total as at 30 June, 2024 31,968,000 (31,968,000

Total s at 30 June 2023 63934400 (31,966,400) 31,968,000 400

6.4.1

6.4.1.1

6.4.2

This represents unlisted term finance certificates issued by Silk Bank Limited. Total size of
the issue is Rs. 2,000 million and the term of the TFCs is eight years commencing from the
date of issue of TFCs which was August 2017 and ending on August 2025. Profit on the
instrument is receivable on semi-annually basis in arrears on the outstanding balance and
the first such profit payment is due at the expiry of 6 months from the issue date and
subsequently every six months thereafter. Profit rate on this term finance certificate is six
months average KIBOR + 1.85% per annum. The instrument is structured to redeem 0.14%
of the issue amount during the first 7 years and remaining 99.86% in the last two semi
annual instalments of 49.93% each. The instrument is unsecured and subordinated to all
other indebtedness of the Bank. The latest available rating of the instrument is BBB+ rated
on December 23, 2021, after that there is no credit rating available as the TFC is non-
performing.

During the year ended June 30, 2022 the issuer defaulted the coupon payment which was
due on February 10, 2022, as a result the investment was classified as non-performing asset
on February 25, 2022 and the markup income / coupon was suspended accordingly. As per
the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by the SECP on October 24, 2012, the
profit accrued uptil February 10, 2022 was reversed and an unrealised loss of Rs. 6.88
million and a provision of Rs. 9.1 million (Total anount of Rs. 15.98 million), which is 20%
of outstanding principal amount of Rs. 79.93 million was recorded as an unrealised loss in
year ended June 30, 2022 Till June 30, 2023, further provision of Rs. 31.97 million was
recorded, which is 40% of principal amount followed by an another provision of Rs. 31.97
million during the year ended June 30, 2024, which is remaining 40% of the principal
amount.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), vide its circular No. 16 date
July 07, 2010 prescribed certain disclosures for the schemes holding investments that were
non-compliant either with the minimum investment criteria specified for category assigned
to such schemes or with the investment requirement of their consecutive documents. The
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide circular 7 of 2009 dated March 6,
2009 required all Asset Management Companies to classify funds under their management
on the basis of categorization criteria a laid down in the circular. Lakson Asset Management
Limited (the Management Company) classified Lakson Income Fund (the Fund) as an 'Income
Scheme' in accordance with the said circular. As at June 30, 2024, the Fund is compliant
with all the requirements of the said circular except for clause 9 (v) which requires the
rating of any security in the portfolio shall not be lower than the investment grade. The
following are the details of non-compliant investments held by the Fund:

Investmen
Value of Value of | Investment esats ent
Name of Non-compliant investment Note Type of |i isi as ercentage
P Investment before held (if any) after percentage pof Grossg
provision provision |of Net Assets
Assets
silk Bank Limited 641 Term Finance 34 968 000 (31,968,000) - 0.00% 0.00%

Certificate

During the period it was classified as non-performing as of October 10, 2023 due to an
overdue payment. As per the requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by the SECP
on October 24, 2012, the profit accrued until October 09, 2023 was reversed however, no
provision for outstanding principal was recorded. The overdue profit amount was later
received on 22 Nov 2023 and subsequently on Jan 09, 2024. The instrument was later
automatically classified as " Performing" after the timely receipt of profit due on April 09,
2024, as stated in Circular No. 33 of 2012 by SECP.
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6.4.3 Significant terms and conditions of term finance certificates outstanding as at June 30,
2024 are as follows:
Name of the Issuer Mark-up rate (per annum) Maturity date Rating
Commercial Bank
Samba Bank Limited 6 months KIBOR + 1.35% March 01, 2031 AA-
Jahangir Siddiqui Bank Limited 6 months KIBOR + 1.4% December 28, 2028 A+
NRSP Micro Finance Bank 3 months KIBOR + 3% July 09, 2028 A-
6.4.3.1  The rating of the term finance certificates have been obtained from Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency (PACRA).Markup on above term finance certificate is receivable on semi annually
basis in arrears, except NRSP Micro Finance Bank which is receivable on quarterly basis in
arrears with no floor or cap.
6.5 Sukuk Certificates - Face value of Rs. 1,000,000 each

At amortised cost

Holding Purchases | Disposed / Holding as at |Carrying value| V:T;Lvl:ga Carrying | Face value as
Name of security saits | ronery | Maricup rate [ asatuuly 01, | duringthe | PSS | une30,  fasatiune30, | percentage || Ve 32 [Percentage of
2023 period period 2024 2024 B of total et assets Issue
----------- Number of shares-————— (Rupees) JE—— 7] p—
6 months KIBOR
Ismail Insudtries limited Semi-annually 13-Aug-24 plus'bgse rate 160 160 173,325,720 2.53 223 0.04
o
Total as at June 30, 2024 173,325,720 2.53 223 0.04
Total as at June 30, 2023 - - - -
6.6 Certificate of Deposit - Face value of Rs. 100 each
N Disposed / . . Carrying .
Name ot ety poemen: | owwot | Jom | o | e | S|l et g laei | i
v Days) 2023 period g :‘ e 2024 2024 _oftotal | ¢ et assets
perio investments
(Rupees) - (¢
Orix Leasing Private Company
Limited 12-Jan-24 13-Jan-25 365 21.25% 300,000,000 300,000,000 329,866,438 481 4.24
Total as at June 30, 2024 300,000,000 300,000,000 329,866,438 4.81 4.24
Total as at June 30, 2023 - - - - -
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
7. PROFIT / MARK-UP RECEIVABLE Note (Rupees)
Profit / return receivable on:
Profit and loss sharing accounts 14,964,551 549,647
Term finance certificates 6,236,126 7,997,346
Government securities 36,114,462 -
57,315,139 8,546,993
8. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposits:
-Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited 100,000 100,000
-National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited 8.1 2,750,000 2,750,000
Advance tax 8.2 13,735,124 13,626,153
Receivable against redemption
of investments - 48,278
Other receivables - 1,780,303
16,585,124 18,304,734
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8.1 This represents deposit with NCCPL in respect of the trading of listed securities.

8.2 As per clause 47(B) of part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
payments made to collective investment schemes (CISs) are exempt from withholding tax
under section 151. However, withholding tax on profit on bank balances paid to the Fund
was deducted by various withholding agents based on the interpretation issued by FBR
vide its Circular "C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT) / 2008 - Vol.Il - 66417 - R dated May 12, 2015"
which requires every withholding agent to withhold income tax at applicable rates in case
a valid exemption certificate under section 159(1) issued by the concerned Commissioner
of Inland Revenue (CIR) is not produced before him by the withholdee.

For this purpose, the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) on behalf of various
mutual funds (including the Funds being managed by the Management Company) had filed
a petition in the Sindh High Court (SHC) challenging the above mentioned interpretation
of the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) which was decided by the SHC in favour of FBR. A
petition was filed in the Supreme Court of Pakistan by the Funds together with other CISs
(managed by the Management Company and other Asset Management Companies) whereby
the Supreme Court granted the petitioners leave to appeal from the initial judgment of
SHC. Pending resolution of the matter, the amount of withholding tax deducted on profit
on bank balances have been shown as advance tax under assets as at June 30, 2024 as, in
the opinion of the management, the amount of tax deducted at source will be refunded.

9. REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
Note (Rupees)
Payable to the Management Company 9.1 5,767,642 288,009
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration to
Management Company 9.2 750,187 37,442
Federal Excise Duty on remuneration
to Management Company 9.3 18,545,360 18,545,360
25,063,189 18,870,811
9.1 As per regulation 61 of the NBFC and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, the Management

Company is entitled to a remuneration equal to an amount not exceeding the maximum
rate of the management fee as disclosed in the Offering Document subject to the total
expense ratio limit. As per offering document, the Management Company can charge
management fee up to 1.5% of average annual net assets of the fund, calculated on daily
basis. The effective management fee rate for the year ended June 30, 2024 is 0.90% of
average annual net assets calculated on daily basis.

9.2 The Sindh Revenue Board has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2023:
13%) on the remuneration of management company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services
Act, 2011. This includes Sindh Sales Tax charged on Fedral Excies Duty which is not paid
due to the case pending for adjudication in Supreme Court of Pakistan as disclosed in note
9.3.

9.3 The Finance Act, 2013 enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services
to include Asset Management Companies (AMCs) as a result of which FED at the rate of
16 percent on the remuneration of the Management Company and sales load was applicable
with effect from June 13, 2013. The Management Company was of the view that since the
remuneration was already subject to provincial sales tax, further levy of FED would result
in double taxation which did not appear to be the spirit of the law. Hence, on September
4, 2013 a constitutional petition was filed with the Sindh High Court (SHC) by the Management
Company together with various other asset management companies challenging the levy
of FED.
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10.

11.

12,

121

With effect from July 1, 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by non-banking financial
institutions dealing in services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn
by the Finance Act, 2016. During the year ended June 30, 2017, SHC passed an order
whereby all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty recovered or actions
taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering or providing of services
(to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) were set aside. In response to this,
the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has filed a Civil Petition for leave to appeal in
the Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending adjudication.

In view of the above, the Fund has discontinued making further provision in respect of FED
on remuneration of the Management Company with effect from July 01, 2016. However,
being prudent the provision for FED made for the period from June 13, 2013 till June 30,
2016 amounting to Rs 18.54 million (2023: 18.54 million) is being retained in these financial
statements of the Fund as the matter is pending before the Supreme Court of Pakistan.
Had the provision for FED not been made, the net asset value of the Fund as at June 30,
2024 would have been higher by Re. 0.24 (June 30, 2023: Rs.3.28) per unit.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under
the provision of Trust Deed. Trustee fee which is 0.075% per annum of the net assets.

The remuneration is paid to the trustee in arrears on monthly basis.

ANNUAL FEE PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
This represents annual fee payable to SECP in accordance with the NBFC Regulations,
whereby the Fund is required to pay SECP an amount at the rate of 0.075% per annum of

the average daily net assets of the fund. These rates are revised with effect from July 1
2023, in accordance with the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulation, 2008.

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
Note (Rupees)
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Auditors' remuneration 418,214 418,177
Brokerage payable 371,021 72,154
Payable to National Clearing Company
of Pakistan Limited 254,522 275,015
Printing and stationery payable 8,089 -
Dividend payable 661,824 360,935
Withholding tax payable 47,418,053 1,592,719
PACRA rating fee payable 598,373 544,047
Others 12.1 4,922,104 4,925,930
54,652,200 8,188,977

This amount includes excess profit credited by the a bank. During the year ended June 30,
2022, bank credited an amount of Rs. 4.27 million. The Management Company is of the
view after recomputing the profit due from the bank that excess profit was not due to the
Fund. The matter was raised with the bank and is yet to finalised. Management Company,
being prudent, has not recorded any income against the amount received and has recorded
an accrued liability.
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13.

14.

141

15.

16.

17.

18.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

As per the SECP circular vide direction no. 23 dated July 20, 2016 and as referred in
Regulations 60 (5) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 (the "Regulations"), Total Expense Ratio (TER) calculated inclusive of Sindh Sales Tax
and SECP fee is 1.27% as of June 30, 2024 (June 30, 2023: 1.58%) and this includes 0.21%
(June 30, 2023: 0.16%) representing Sindh Sales tax and SECP fee. As per NBFC Regulation
the total expense ratio of the Income Scheme shall be caped up to 2.5% (excluding
government levies).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contigencies

The Fund had no contingency at the period end except as those mentioned elsewhere in
this financial statements.

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE (Rupees)
Total outstanding as of 1 July 5,650,860 25,822,658
Issued during the year 132,090,538 40,733,362
Redeemed during the year (61,369,803) (60,905,160)
Total units in issue as of 30 June 76,371,595 5,650,860
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION (Numbers)
Annual audit fee 397,530 382,976
Fee for the review of half yearly
financial statements 126,500 119,680
Out of pocket and sales tax expenses 98,517 46,204
622,547 548,860
TAXATION

The Fund is exempt from taxation under Clause 99 of the Part | of the 2nd Schedule of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting
income for the year as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed
amongst the unit holders, provided that for the purpose of determining distribution of not
less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, the income distributed through bonus
units shall not be taken into account. Furthermore, as per regulation 63 of the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute
90% of the net accounting income other than capital gains to the unit holders. The Fund
is also exempt from the provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part
IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Since the management
company has distributed the income earned by the Fund during the year to the unit holders
in the manner as explained above, no provision for taxation has been made in these financial
statement.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES / CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons / related parties include Lakson Investments Limited being the
Management Company, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) being the
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trustee and the custodian ,SIZA services Private Limited being holding company of the
management company, SIZA Services Private Limited being holding company of the
Management Company, associated companies of the Management Company, key
management personnel and other funds being managed by the Management Company,
staff retirement benefits of related parties and other entities having more than 10% holding

in the units of the Fund as at June 30, 2024.

Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance
with the provisions of NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively. Other transactions
are in normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms as approved by the Board."

Transactions and balances with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere are

as follows:

18.1 Details of balances with related parties /
connected persons at the year end

Lakson Investments Limited - Management
Company of the Fund

Remuneration payable to Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of
Management Company *

Federal Excise Duty on Management
Company's remuneration

Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited - Trustee of the Fund

Remuneration payable

Security deposit

18.2 Details of transactions with related parties /
connected persons during the year

Lakson Investments Limited - Management
Company of the Fund

Remuneration to the Management Company

Sindh sales tax on remuneration of
Management Company *

Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited - Trustee of the Fund

Remuneration for the year

Settlement charges for the year

* Sales tax is paid / payable to the management company / Trustee for onwards payment

to the Government.

2024 2023
(Rupees)

5,767,642 288,009
750,187 37,442
18,545,360 18,545,360
451,182 39,725
100,000 100,000
34,184,320 11,490,686
4,444,356 1,491,403
3,205,470 933,063
21,693 22,818
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18.4

18.5

18.6

19.

19.1

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee has been determined
in accordance with the provisions of NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Dividend distributed by the Fund is recognised at the amount/units declared to all the unit
holders.

Purchase and redemption of the Fund's unit by related parties / connected persons are
recorded at the applicable net asset value per unit. Dividend income is recorded at the
amounts these are declared by the investee company. Other transactions are at agreed
rates.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction and overview
The Fund has exposure to the following risks from financial instruments:

- credit risk (refer note 19.1);

- liquidity risk (refer note 19.2);

- market risk (refer note 19.3);

- operational risk (refer note 19.4); and

- unit holders' fund risk (refer note 19.5).

Risk management framework

The Management Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management framework.

Risk is inherent in the Fund's activities, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling
activities which are primarily setup based on limits established by the Management Company,
Fund's Trust Deed and the rules, regulations and directives of the SECP. The policies are
established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set appropriate risk
exposure limits and set up controls and to monitor risks and adherence to exposure limits.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Fund's activities.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Fund's
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Fund. The internal audit functions assists
the audit committee by undertaking regular reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Asset purchases and sales are determined by the Fund’s Investment Manager, who has
been authorised to manage the distribution of the assets to achieve the Fund’s investment
objectives. Compliance with the target asset allocations and the composition of the portfolio
is monitored by the Investment Committee. In instances where the portfolio has diverged
from target asset allocations, the Fund’s Investment Manager is obliged to take actions to
rebalance the portfolio in line with the established targets, within prescribed time limits.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from bank balances,
deposits and other receivables, receivable against Margin Trading System, term finance
certificates, commercial papers and receivable against sale of marketable securities and
security deposits.
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Management of credit risk

The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Investment Committee, its Trust Deed and the requirements
of NBFC rules and regulations. Before making investment decisions, the credit rating and
credit worthiness of the issuer is taken into account along with the financial background
so as to minimize the risk of default.

Credit risk is managed and controlled by the Management Company of the Fund in the
following manner:

- Where the investment committee makes an investment decision, the credit rating and
credit worthiness of the issuer is considered along with the financial background so as
to minimize the risk of default.

- Analysing of credit ratings and obtaining adequate collaterals wherever appropriate /
relevant.

- The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed trades causing a loss to the Fund is
mitigated by a periodic review of the credit ratings and financial statements on a regular
basis.

- Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit enhancements.

- Investment transactions are carried out with a large number of brokers, whose credit
worthiness is considered so as to minimize the risk of default and transactions are settled
or paid for only upon delivery.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2024 was as follows:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Statement Maximum Statement Maximum
of ASS?FS. ang exposure of .Assg.ts. and exposure
Liabilities Liabilities
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Bank balances (including
profit due) 945,779,359 945,779,359 40,138,872 40,138,872
Investments (including
markup receivable) 6,901,967,634 676,708,483 545,131,335 344,257,934
Deposits and other receivable 2,850,000 2,850,000 4,678,581 4,678,581

7,850,596,993 1,625,337,842 589,948,788 389,075,387

Difference in the balance as per the statement of assets and liabilities and maximum
exposure in investments is due to the fact that investment in government securities of Rs.
6.225 billion which are not considered to carry credit risk.

Bank balances

The Fund held cash and cash equivalents at reporting date with banks had following credit
ratings:
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Rating

AAA

AA+

AA

AA-

A+

A

A-

BBB+

Total balance including

profit due

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
------- Rupees ------- e
483,005 315,157 0.05 0.79
563,183,135 39,367,381 59.55 98.11
149,407 248,031 0.02 0.62
35,939 36,074 0.00 0.09
381,800,543 88,625 40.37 0.22
62,286 59,058 0.01 0.15
52,578 12,467 0.01 0.03
12,467 12,078 0.00 0.03
945,779,360 40,138,872 100 100

Above rates are on the basis of available ratings assigned by PACRA and JCR-VIS.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the
group of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the
Fund’s total credit exposure.

Details of Fund's concentration of credit risk of financial instruments by industrial distribution

are as follows:

Commercial banks (including
profit due)

Micro Finance Bank

Commercial banks - Term
Finance Certificates

Investment Company - Term
Finance Certificates

Profit receivable on - Term
Finance Certificates

Profit receivable on -
Government securities

National Clearing Company of
Pakistan Limited- Deposit
and cash margin

Central Depository Company of

Pakistan Limited - Deposit
Others

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
(Rupees) (%) (Rupees) (%)
576,522,006 51.38 40,089,441 10.30
369,257,353 32.91 49,431 0.01
131,165,737 11.69 326,869,913 84.01

- - 9,390,674 2.41

6,236,126 0.56 7,997,346 2.06
36,114,462 3.22 - -

2,750,000 0.25 2,750,000 0.71

100,000 0.01 100,000 0.03

- - 1,828,582 0.47

1,122,145,684 100 389,075,387 100

Past due and impaired assets and collaterals held

None of the financial assets of the Fund are past due or impaired as at June 30, 2024 other
than investments mentioned in note 6.4.1.
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19.2

Settlement risk

The Fund’s activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement
risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash,
securities or other assets as contractually agreed on sale.

For the majority of transactions the Fund mitigates this risk by conducting settlements
through a broker with good credit worthiness to ensure that a trade is settled only when
both parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement obligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Fund's approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's
reputation.

The Fund aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable
securities at an amount in excess of expected cash outflows on financial liabilities. The Fund
is exposed to risk of cash outflow on redemptions of its units on a regular basis. Units are
redeemable at the holder’s option based on the Fund’s applicable redemption rate per unit
at the time of redemption calculated in accordance with the Fund’s constitutive document
and guidelines laid down by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Management of liquidity risk

The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by investing majority of its assets in investments
that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed. Other than placing funds
in profit and loss accounts maintained with the banks, the Fund invests primarily in
marketable securities and other financial instruments, which under normal market conditions
are readily convertible to cash. As a result, the Fund may be able to liquidate quickly its
investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity
requirement. The present settlement system is a T+2 system, which means that proceeds
from sales (to pay off redemptions) of holdings will be received on the second day after
the sale, while redemptions have to be paid within a period of six working days from the
date of the redemption request.

In addition, in accordance with 58(1) (k) of NBFC Regulation, 2008, the Fund is entitled to
borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for meeting redemptions. The maximum amount
available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the extent of 15% of net assets at the
time of borrowing with repayment with in 90 days of such borrowings. No such borrowings
were made during the year.

In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund is also allowed in accordance with
regulation 57(10) of NBFC Regulations, 2008, to withhold daily redemption request in excess
of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption
request qualifying for being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would
continue until the outstanding redemption requests come down to a level below ten percent
of the units then in issue. However, during the period no such option was exercised or
considered necessary.

Units of Fund are redeemable on demand, however, the Fund does not anticipate significant
redemptions of units.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

Following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting
date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted.
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19.3

19.3.1

19.3.2

2024
Contractual cash flows
Carrying Less than
amount 3 month
Non-derivative financial liabilites @~~~ (Rupees) -----------
(excluding unit holders' fund)
Payable to the Management Company * 25,063,189 6,517,829
Remuneration payable to the Trustee * 451,182 451,182
Accrued expenses and other liabilities * 2,294,234 2,294,234
27,808,605 9,263,245
2023
Contractual cash flows
Carrying Less than
amount 3 month
Non-derivative financial liabilites 77 (Rupees) -----------
(excluding unit holders' fund)
Payable to the Management Company * 18,870,811 325,451
Remuneration payable to the Trustee * 39,725 39,725
Accrued expenses and other liabilities * 1,965,323 1,965,323
20,875,859 2,330,499

*excluding provision for workers' welfare fund and Annual fee payable to the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Above financial liabilities do not carry any mark-up.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices - will affect the Fund’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Management of market risks

The Fund manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following
the internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment
Committee and regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan. The aggregate risk resulting from financial instruments equals their fair values.
The Fund, in general, is exposed to currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present, is not
exposed to currency risk as all transactions are carried out in Pakistan Rupees.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates. Risk management procedures are the

same as those mentioned in the credit risk management.

Exposure to interest rate risk
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The interest rate profile of the Fund's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

June 30, June 30
2024 2023
Note (Rupees)
Variable-rate instrument
Bank balances 930,807,334 39,581,751
Term finance certificates 131,165,737 336,260,587

1,061,973,071 375,842,338

Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date
would have increased / decreased unit holder fund and income statement by Rs. 10.61
million (2023: Rs. 3.76 million). The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Above bank balances are repriced by the bank after changes in the State Bank of Pakistan's
policy rate and do not have any contractual maturity.

None of the other assets and Fund's liabilities are exposed to interest rate risk.

June 30, June 30
2024 2023
Note (Rupees)

Fixed rate instruments
Pakistan Investment Bonds 922,832,400 -
Market treasury bills 5,302,426,751 200,873,402
Short term sukuk 173,325,720 -
Certificate of deposit 329,866,438 -

6,728,451,309 200,873,402

There are no fixed rate instruments exposed to interest rate risk.

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and profit rates are expected to change
over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2024 is not necessarily
indicative of the impact on the Fund's net assets of the future movements in interest rates.

Yield/profit sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off balance sheet instruments is
based on settlement date.

A summary of the Fund's interest rate gap position, categorised by the earlier of contractual
re-pricing or maturity date is as follows:
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Exposed to
Interest interest rate risk Not exposed to
rate% Nolaterthan  More than interestrate risk  1otal
one month one year
(note 7.2)
Note Rupees
Financial assets
Investments
- Term finance certificates 6.4 12.38 -24.97 - 131,165,737 - 131,165,737
- Government securities 6.1 &6.2 20.39-24.78 - 922,832,400 5,302,426,751 6,225,259,151
- Short term sukkuk 6.5 21.87 - 173,325,720 173,325,720
- Certificate of deposits 6.6 21.25 - 329,866,438 - 329,866,438
Bank Balances 5.1 18-23.9 930,807,334 - 7,474 930,814,808
Deposits and other receivable 8 - - 2,850,000 2,850,000
930,807,334 1,557,190,295 5,305,284,225 7,793,281,854
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management
Company - - 5,767,642 5,767,642
Remuneration payable to
the Trustee - - 451,182 451,182
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities - - 2,294,234 2,294,234
Total financial liabilities - - 8,513,058 8,513,058
On balance sheet gap 930,807,334 1,557,190,295 5,296,771,167 7,784,768,796
Cumulative interest rate gap * 930,807,334 2,487,997,629
* There were no off balance sheet financial instruments for the Fund.
---------------------------- June 30, 2023 -----emeeemeemmmemmeeneeees
Exposed to
Interest interest rate risk Not exposed to
rate% Nolaterthan  Morethan interestraterisk  1°otal
one month one year
(note 7.2)
Rupees
Financial assets
Investments
- Term finance certificates 6.4 12.38 -24.97 - 336,260,587 - 336,260,587
- Government securities 6.1&6.2 12.85-22 - - 200,873,402 200,873,402
Bank Balances 5.1 5.5-16.26 39,581,751 - 7,474 39,589,225
Receivable from Margin
Trading System - - - -
Deposits and other receivable 8 - - 4,678,581 4,678,581
39,581,751 336,260,587 205,559,457 581,401,795
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management
Company - - 288,009 288,009
Remuneration payable to
the Trustee - - 39,725 39,725
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities - - 1,965,323 1,965,323
Total financial liabilities - - 2,293,057 2,293,057
On balance sheet gap 39,581,751 336,260,587 203,266,400 579,108,738
Cumulative interest rate gap * 39,581,751 375,842,338

* There were no off balance sheet financial instruments for the Fund.
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19.3.3

194

Price risk

The Fund was exposed to equity price risk i.e. the risk of unfavourable changes in the fair
value of equity securities as a result changes in the levels of Pakistan Stock Exchange Index
and the value of individual shares, which arises from investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

The management of the Fund monitors the proportion of equity securities in its investment
portfolio based on market indices. The Fund policy is to manage price risk through
diversification and selection of securities within specified limits set by internal risk
management guidelines and the requirements of NBFC regulations. The Fund manages
those risk by limiting exposure to any single investee company to the extent of 10% of
issued capital of that investee company and the net assets of the Fund with overall limit
of 30% or index weight whichever is higher subject to maximum of 35% to a single industry
sector of the net assets of the Fund (the limit set by NBFC regulations).

The Fund also manages its exposure to price risk by reviewing portfolio allocation as
frequently as necessary and at least once a quarter from the aspect of allocation within
industry and individual stock within that allocation. Material investments within the portfolio
are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the
Investment Committee. The primary goal of the Fund's investment strategy is to maximise
investment returns.

As at year end, the fund holds no equity instrument and as such is not exposed to any price
risk.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes
associated with the processes, technology and infrastructure supporting the Fund's operations
either internally within the Fund or externally at the Fund's service providers, and from
external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal
and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management
behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the Fund's activities.

The Fund's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial
losses and damage to its reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating
returns for investors.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over
operational risk rests with the Board of Directors of the Management Company. This
responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and
responsibilities;

- requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy
of controls and procedures to address the risks identified;

- ethical and business standards;

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Unit holder's fund risk management

The Fund's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide
returns to its unit holders. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level
of dividends to unit holders and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in markets'
conditions.
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Under the NBFC regulations 2008, the minimum size of an open end scheme shall be one
hundred million rupees at all the times during the life of the scheme. The Fund size depends
on the issuance and redemption of units.

20. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for
all fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurement where such
measurements are required as permitted by other IFRSs. It defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).
Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices
prevailing on the close of trading i.e. period end date. The estimated fair value of all other
financial assets and financial liabilities is considered not significantly different from book
value as these are short term in nature.
The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, based on:
A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from
prices); and
Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).
The following table shows the carrying amounts of fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities including the levels in the fair value hierarchy:
2024
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value zed ner fi ol
On-balance sheet financial instruments ‘hm:f::,f;om A"éz:s':e m,;rbi:i";:: . Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
investments
(Rupees)
Financial assets measured at fair value
‘Government securities
- Market treasury bills 6.1 5,302,426,751 - - 5,302,426,751 - 5302,426,751 - 5302,426,751
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 6.2 922,832,400 - - 922,832,400 922,832,400 - - 922,832,400
Term finance certificates - Unlisted 6.4 131,165,737 - - 131,165,737 131,165,737 - - 131,165,737
6,356,424,888 - - 6,356,424,888 1,053,998,137 5,302,426,75 - 6,356,424,888
Financial assets not measured at fair value 20.1
Short term sukkuk 6.5 - 173,325,720 - 173,325,720
Certificate of deposits 6.6 - 329,866,438 - 329,866,438
Bank balances 5 - 930,814,808 - 930,814,808
Profit / mark-up receivable 7 - 57,315,139 - 57,315,139
Deposits and other receivables 8 - 2,850,000 - 2,850,000
1,494,172,105 - 1,494,172,105
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 20.1
Payable to the Management Company 9 - - 5,767,642 5,767,642
Remuneration payable to the Trustee 10 - - 451,182 451,182
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 - - 2,294,234 2,294,234
8,513,058 8,513,058
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2023

Carrying amount

Fair Value

Fair value
On-balance sheet financial instruments B el i Total Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
investments
(Rupees)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Government securities
- Market treasury bills 6.1 200,873,402 200,873,402 200,873,402 200,873,402
Term finance certificates - Unlisted 62 336,260,587 336,260,587 304,292,587 31,968,000 336,260,587
537,133,989 537,133,089 304,292,587 200,873,402 31,968,000 537,133,989
Financial assets not measured at fair value 201
Bank balances 5 39,589,225 39,589,225
Profit / mark-up receivable 7 8,546,993 8,546,993
Deposits and other receivables 8 4,678,581 4,678,581
52,814,799 52,814,799
Financial liabilties not measured at fair value 201
Payable to the Management Company o 288,009 288,009
Remuneration payable to the Trustee 10 39,725 39,725
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1 1,965,323 1,965,323

2,293,057

2,293,057

20.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair value for these financial assets and financial liabilities,
as these are either short term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair values.

21. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING OUT OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Redemption Dividend Total
of Units

Opening balance as at 1 July 2023 - 360,935 360,935
Payable against redemption of units 6,908,944,714 - 6,908,944,714
Payable against dividend - 877,626,631 877,626,631
6,908,944,714 877,626,631 7,786,571,345

Amount paid on redemption of units (6,908,944,714) - (6,908,944,714)
Dividend paid - (877,325,742) | | (877,325,742)
(6,908,944,714) (877,325,742) (7,786,270,456)

Closing balance as at 30 June 2024 - 661,824 661,824

22. SUPPLEMENTARY NON FINANCIAL INFORMATION
The information regarding unit holding pattern, top brokers, members of the Investment
Committee, Fund manager, meetings of the Board of Directors of the management company
and rating of the Fund and the management company are as follows:

221 Unit holding pattern of the Fund

June 30, 2024

No. of Investment % of total
Category Investors amount net assets

----------------------- (Rupees) -------===emmmmmemaeee
Individuals 40 94,044,061 1.20
Associated Companies and Directors 41 7,202,124,911 92.51
NBFC's (Management Company) 1 39,444,373 0.51
Retirement funds 1 676,542 0.01
Insurance 6 449,283,383 5.77
Total 89 7,785,573,270 100.00
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——————————————————————— June 30, 2023 --------------monooo---

No. of Investment % of total
Category Investors amount net assets

----------------------- (Rupees) =----nnmmmmmmmmmeeenn
Individuals 26 14,612,850 2.54
Associated Companies and Directors 30 312,211,918 54.18
NBFC's (Management Company) 2 248,492,201 43.12
Retirement funds 1 583,471 0.10
Insurance 2 349,940 0.06
Others 1 5,444 -
Total 62 576,255,824 100.00

22.2 List of top 10 brokers by percentage of commission paid
(Percentage %)
2024 2023
Name of broker
Topline Securities Private Limited 31.91 -
C&M Management Private Limited 18.35 -
JS Global Capital Limited 13.86 38.47
Bright Capital Private Limited 9.84 -
Continental Exchange Private Limited 8.66 3.10
Alfalah Securities Private Limited 6.09 -
Optimus Capital Management Private Limited 5.33 42.47
EFG Hermes Pakistan 5.02 -
Magenta Securities Private Limited 0.70 7.16
KTrade Securities 0.19 -
22.3 Particulars of the Investment Committee and Fund manager

Following are the members of the investment committee of the Fund:

- Mr. Babar Ali Lakhani (Chairman Investment Committee)
- Mr. Kashif Mustafa - (Executive Director & COO)

- Mr. Mustafa O. Pasha - (Chief Investment Officer)

- Mr. Hassan Bin Nasir

- Mr. Danial Baig

Mr. Babar Ali Lakhani - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lakhani has over twenty three years of investment and portfolio management experience
in domestic and international equity and fixed income markets. Mr. Lakhani most recently
served as the Chief Investment Officer of Century Insurance, a Public Limited Company
listed on the Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges of Pakistan. He was an Investment
Associate at High Street Advisors and a Research Analyst at Credit Suisse Equity Group
(formerly Credit Suisse First Boston). Mr. Lakhani brings extensive investment experience,
globally practiced portfolio management discipline, and a comprehensive understanding
of the global asset management industry to Lakson Investments Limited.

Mr. Lakhani received his BA in Finance from Bentley College, and his MBA from Brandeis
University.

Mr. Lakhani is a member of the Global Association of Risk Professionals (GARP), the Society
of Financial Service Professionals and the Young Presidents' Organization (YPO). Mr. Lakhani
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is a member of the Alumni Trustee Committee of Brandeis University and is the school’s
representative in Pakistan.

Mr. Lakhani was looking after Lakson Asset Allocation Emerging Market Fund and Lakson
Asset Allocation Global Commodities Fund. Subsequently, Mr. Umair and Mr. Pasha have
designated to manage the Lakson Asset Allocation Emerging Market Fund and Lakson Asset
Allocation Global Commodities Fund respectively.

Mr. Kashif Mustafa — Executive Director and COO

Mr. Mustafa has more than fifteen years of experience working in the financial markets of
Pakistan local & international brokerage houses, and leading Asset Management Companies.
Mr. Mustafa’s experience includes; Financial Analysis, Equity Research, Investment Advisory
and Business Development.

Mr. Mustafa O. Pasha, CFA — Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Pasha has over fifteen years of experience in the asset management and investment
advisory industry. He did his Bachelors in Economics from McGill University (Montreal,
Canada) in 2006 and obtained his CFA charter in 2012.

He was previously associated with BMA where he initially served as a fixed income analyst
and later became the in house economist for the entire BMA group. Between 2009 - 2012
he supervised fixed income/money market investments across all mutual funds and
institutional/HNW accounts advised by BMA. He is also managing Lakson Tactical Fund.

Mr. Hassan Bin Nasir- Fund Manager

Mr. Hassan Bin Nasir has over thirteen years of experience and currently holds positions
of Vice President Fixed Income in Lakson Investments Limited. He completed his Masters
in Business Administration in Finance major from Bahria University, Pakistan. He has
immense experience in managing portfolios across Collective Investment Schemes, Separate
Managed Accounts with Strong Fixed Income background, investment strategy and trading
experience in instruments including, Government Securities, Corporate Debt Securities,
Banking Products and Shariah Compliant Corporate Debt Securities. He is managing the
following funds:

- Lakson Income Fund
- Lakson Money Market Fund
- Lakson Asset Allocation Developed Markets Fund

Mr. Mirza Danial Baig

Mr. Baig has a Master's degree in Business Administration, with over eight (8) years of
experience in asset management and banking. He has knowledge base in NBFC Rules &
Regulations, AML Regulations, corporate governance, formulation of internal
policies/mechanisms, development and execution of multi-faceted compliance programs.

He has been associated with Lakson Investments since September 2023, as Manager
Compliance, where he is responsible for overseeing the Compliance Function.
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2023 - 2024
. Meeting |September | October February April
Name of directors Attended | 04,2023 | 20,2023 | 27,2024 | 30,2024

Mr. Igbal Ali Lakhani 4 v v v v
Mr. Babar Ali Lakhani 4 v v v v
Mr. Amin Mohammed Lakhani 4 v v v v
Mr. Jamil Ahmed Mughal 4 v v v v

4 4 4 4

22.5 Rating of the Fund and the management company

Details of the ratings of the Fund and the management company are given in note 1.3.

23. GENERAL
23.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary.
23.2 These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the

Management Company on September 12, 2024.
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For Lakson Investments Limited
(Management Company)

s

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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LAKSON INCOME FUND

Performance Table FY24 FY23 FY22 FY21
Net Assets - Beginning (PKR Mil.) 576 2,618 5,100 3,061
Net Assets - Ending (PKR Mil.) 7786 576 2,618 5,100
Net Asset value per share 101.9433 101.9766 101.3972 101.1275
Selling Price for units 103.6764 103.7102 102.9182 102.6445
Repurchase Price for units 101.9433 101.9766 101.3972 101.1275
Highest Offer Price (PKR) 119.8356 112.1301 111.4865 109.6882
Lowest Offer Price (PKR) 101.8528 102.9514 102.6911 102.5166
Highest Redemption Price (PKR) 117.8324 110.2557 109.8389 108.0671
Lowest Redemption Price (PKR) 100.1502 101.4299 101.1735 101.0015
Beginning NAV - Ex-Div. (PKR) 101.9766 101.3972 101.1275 100.8591
Interim Distributions (PKR) 16.2433 8.8585 8.7114 6.9833
Final Distribution (PKR) - - - -
Ending NAV - Ex-Div. (PKR) 101.9433 101.3972 101.3972 101.1275
Return 15.95% 9.15% 8.90% 7.19%
Net Income (PKR Mil.) 720 105 115 169
Total Distribution (PKR Mil.) 265 46 109 163
Accumulated Capital Growth 556 101 42 36
WAM (Days) 403 1,251 1,444 697
Average Annual return of the Fund

One Year 15.95% 9.15% 8.90% 7.19%
Two year 12.55% 9.03% 8.37% 10.94%
Three year 21.29% 8.81% 10.72% 10.38%
Since inception (November 13,2009) 21.87% 16.99% 16.70% 16.23%
Distributions FY24 FY23 FY22 Fy21
Interim Distribution 16.2433 8.8585 8.7114 6.9833
Final Distribution - - - -
NAV before Distribution 117.8324 101.3972 109.8389 108.0819
NAV after Distribution 101.5891 101.3972 101.1275 108.0819
Distribution Date 25-Jun-24 19-Jun-23 27-Jun-22 26-Jun-21

Disclaimer

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment

returns may go down, as well as up.
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